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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Lavastone Ltd

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lavastone Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 72 to 123 which comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2019 and the statements of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, the financial position of the Group and Company as
at 30 September 2019, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and comply with the Companies Act 2001 and Financial Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountant’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial
statements.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Valuation of Investment Properties
The fair value of investment properties and investment properties

under development (“the properties”) amounts to Rs 2.90Bn on - . )
the consolidated financial statements as at 30 September 2019 and - Weassessed the competence, capability, experience andindependence,
of the external property valuer.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

» Assessed independent valuers’ credentials

constitute 92% of the consolidated assets of the Group.

As set out in the accounting policies in Note 3(f) to the consolidated
financial statements, investment properties are carried at fair value and
increases and decreases in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value is determined by external independent valuation specialists
using valuation techniques and assumptions. Valuation techniques for
real estate can be subjective in nature and involve various assumptions
regarding pricing factors. These assumptions include the market rental
income, market-derived discount rate, projected net operating income.

When relevant, fair value has been determined based on recent real
estate transactions with similar characteristics and location of the
valued properties.

* Assessed the valuation method and assumptions used:

- We evaluated the valuation methodology used by the external
property valuer.

- We discussed the valuations with the external property valuer,
challenging key assumptions adopted in the valuations, including
available market selling prices, market rents and by comparing them
with historical rates and other available market data. We performed
a sensitivity analysis using the key assumptions used.

» Assessment of the reasonableness of the data used by management:

- We reviewed the forecasts prepared by management and corroborated
the major inputs used in the forecasts such as rental income and
operating costs by comparing the actual tenancy information in the
underlying contracts and by comparing operating costs.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Valuation of Investment Properties (Continued)
We considered the valuation of the investment properties to be significant
to the audit because:

- the determination of fair value involves significant judgement and
the use of independent external valuation experts;

- the carrying amounts as well as the fair value movements are
significant.

Investment properties under development have been valued
based on the value of work performed by the builders and
certified by independent quantity surveyors.

Because the valuation of investment property is complex and highly
dependent on estimates and assumptions we consider the valuation of
investment properties as a key audit matter in our audit.

Disclosures in respect of properties have been made in note 16 and 17.

Reorganisation of Property Cluster of the CIM Holding Ltd
Group.

In the fiscal year under review, CIM Holding Ltd, the holding Company
of Lavastone Ltd performed a reorganisation of its property cluster.

Prior to the reorganisation, CIM Holding Ltd held a 53% stake in Cim
Financial Services Ltd ("CFSL”) and in Lavastone Ltd through CFSL.

On 18 October 2018, entities pertaining to the property cluster as
disclosed in note 21 were transferred from CFSL to Lavastone Ltd.
Subsequently, Lavastone Ltd was listed on the stock exchange of
Mauritius. The transfer of the entities was made through an exchange
of new shares in Lavastone Ltd to CFSL in exchange of shares in the
entities to be transferred to Lavastone Ltd.

The shares of Lavastone Ltd was subsequently transferred to Cim
Holding Ltd by CFSL. As the group reorganisation was devoid of any
commercial substance, the directors believe it is a reorganisation of
entities under common control.

Accordingly, the transaction has been accounted for under the
“Pooling of Interest Method”.

The reorganisation represents a material transaction and event to the
Group and has a material impact on the consolidated financial statements
of Lavastone Ltd. The process resulted in significant audit effort to date,
in obtaining the understanding of reorganisation of the entities disclosed
in note 30 and its impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Because of the complexity and significance of the transaction,
we consider the transaction as a key audit matter in our audit.

Assessment of the value of investment property under
development:

- We performed a retrospective review for all investment properties
under development by comparing the actual construction costs
incurred during the current year with those included in the prior
year’s forecasts to assess the ability of the management to make
reliable budgets and forecasts.

- We conducted site visits on certain investment properties under
development and discussed with management and the quantity
surveyor on the development progress and the development budgets
reflected in the latest forecasts for each property development project.

- We compared, on a sample basis, the quantity surveyor’s reports for
the construction costs incurred for property development projects
with the underlying payment records and other documentation
relevant to the construction cost accruals and/or payments.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

- Obtained an understanding of the reorganisation through a
review of the minutes of matters discussed and approved by the
Directors on the transaction steps to be undertaken to effect the
reorganisation.

- Inspected the share transfer forms for the transfer of entities’
shareholdings to Lavastone Ltd.

- Assessed whether the transaction is a reorganisation of entities
under common control devoid of commercial substance and
accordingly determine whether it should fall outside the scope of
IFRS 3 - “Business Combination”.

- Reviewed the journal entries to assess whether the accounting
treatment for the transaction was properly applied.

Disclosures in respect of the reorganisation has been made in note 30.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities,
Statement of compliance and the Company Secretary’s Certificate as required by the Companies Act 2001, the Corporate
Governance Report, the leadership statement and highlight of the Company, the strategic report, and the risk management
report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. Other information does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information identified above (other than the Corporate
Governance Report) and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance.

Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Corporate Governance Report. Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting
Act is to report on the compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance disclosed in the annual report and assess the
explanations given for non-compliance with any requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on
corporate governance in the annual report, the public interest entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act
2001, complied with the requirements of the Code.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2001 and Financial Reporting Act 2004 and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intends to liquidate the Group and or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and Company’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group and the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Group and Company other than in our capacity as auditors, tax advisors and
dealings in the ordinary course of business.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those records.

ERNST & YOUNG LI KUNE LAN POOKIM, F.C.A, F.C.C.A
Ebene, Mauritius Licensed by FRC

26 December 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 30 September 2019 For the year ended 30 September 2019
GROUP COMPANY GROUP COMPANY
Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018 Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
ASSETS Revenue
Non-current assets Rental income 133,533 15,173 - -
Investment properties 16 2,545,512 1,237,029 160,000 160,000 Services to tenants 21,795 20,178 - -
Investment properties under development 17 344,120 - - - Other operating income 7,121 4,934 - -
Plant, property and equipment 18 1,296 - - - Total revenue 8(a) 162,449 140,285 - -
Intangible assets 19 15 45,304 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 21 - - 1,109,694 495,800 Direct operating expenses 9 (51,462) (40,651) (20) -
Investment in associates 20 19,956 - 19,990 -
2,910,999 1,282,333 1,289,684 655,800 Net operational income/(loss) 110,987 99,634 (20) -
Current assets Other income 8(b) - - 43,090 -
Consumable biological assets 22 3,112 - - - Administrative expenses 10 (51,090) (27,670) (4,740) (329)
Inventory properties 23 33,278 - - - Operating profit/(loss) 59,897 71,964 38,330 (329)
Income tax receivable 13 - - 51 Profit on disposal of investment properties 104 - - -
Trade and other receivables 24 137,150 217,149 458,281 327,636 Other gains and losses 12 128,158 551 - (8,965)
Cash in hand and at bank 25 37,885 85,620 14,380 47,558 Share of results in associates 20 (34) - - -
211,425 302,769 473,172 375,194
Total assets 3,122,424 1,585,102 1,762,856 1,030,994 Profit before net finance income/(cost) 188,125 72,515 38,330 (9,294)
Interest income using effective interest method - 8,951 17,383 14,956
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Finance costs n (1,877) (39) - -
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 26 1,721,081 450,000 1,721,081 450,000 Profit before tax 186,248 81,427 55,713 5,662
Share application monies 26 - 575,000 - 575,000 Income tax expense 13 (29,872) (15,167) (1,086) (2,477)
Capital and other reserves 131,053 - - -
Retained earnings 664,997 511,568 41,387 370 Profit for the year 156,376 66,260 54,627 3,185
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 2,517,131 1,536,568 1,762,468 1,025,370 Other comprehensive income - - - -
Non controlling interests 337,071 - - - Total comprehensive income 156,376 66,260 54,627 3,185
Total equity 2,854,202 1,536,568 1,762,468 1,025,370
Attributable to:
Non-current liabilities Equity holders of the parent 167,039 66,260
Deferred tax liability 13 51,497 28,603 - - Non-controlling interests (10,663) -
Retirement benefit obligations 28 221 221 - -
Borrowings 27 35,694 - - - Basic/diluted earnings per share (Rs) 14 0.35 136.51
87,412 28,824 - -

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 29 86,684 17,848 388 3,147
Contract liabilities 29 14,271 - - -
Income tax payable 13 2,765 1,862 - 2,477
Borrowings 27 77,090 - = -

180,810 19,710 388 5,624
Total equity and liabilities 3,122,424 1,585,102 1,762,856 1,030,994

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

/7 Lo
Colin Taylor Nicolas Vaudin

Director Director

The notes on pages 76 to 123 form an integral part of these financial statements. The notes on pages 76 to 123 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor’s report on pages 68 to 71. Auditor’s report on pages 68 to 71.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 September 2019

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 September 2019

Share Capital Non GROUP COMPANY
Share application Retained  and other controlling Total
GROUP capital monies  earnings reserves Total interests equity Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018
Rs 000 Rs000  Rs000  Rs000  Rs000 Rs000  Rs000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Operating activities
At 1October 2018 450,000 575000 511,568 - 1,536,568 - 1,536,568 Profit before tax Ll 81.427 LA 5662
Profit/(loss) for the year - - 167,039 - 167,039 (10,663) 156,376 Share of results in associates 20 34 ; - ;
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - Adjustments for:
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 167,039 - 167,039 (10,663) 156,376 Amortisation of intangible assets 19 43 814 B )
Issue of share capital (Note 26,30) 1271081 (575,000) - - 696,081 - 696,081 Depreciation 18 gos ; - -
On internal restructuring (Note 30) - - - 131053 131,053 319747 450,800 Dividend income - - (43,090 -
On purchase of subsidiaries - - - - - 27,987 27,987 Interest income B (8,951 (17,383) (14,955)
Dividend - - (13,610) - (13,610) - (13,610) Interest expense !l L2z 39 gy -
At 30 September 2019 1721,081 664997 131053 2517131 337071 2,854,202 Write off of development costs 10 LU - - -
Other (gains) and losses 12 (126,955) (551) - 8,965
At 1 October 2017 519,466 - 445308 - 964774 - 964774 Movement in biological assets 2 121 - - -
Profit for the year ) 66.260 66.260 66,260 (Gain)/Loss on disposal on disposal of land = - = -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - Changes in working capital:
Total comprehensive income B . 66.260 B 66.260 _ 66.260 Trade and other receivables (85,709) 36,597 (114,261) (57,250)
Share application monies B 575,000 B B 575,000 ) 575,000 Trade and other payables 24,346 87,846 (2,758) 171,608
Reduction of capital (69,466) ) ) ) (69,466) ) (69,466) Cash generated from operations 11,693 197,221 (121,779) 114,030
At 30 September 2018 450000 575000 501568 - 1536568 - 1536,568 Interest received - - 998 ;
Income tax paid 13 (10,118) (13,836) (4,074) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 1,575 183,385 (124,855) 114,030
Share Investing activities
Share  application  Retained Dividends received - - 43,090 -
COMPANY capital monies __earnings Total Purchase of investment properties 16,17 (279,462) (210,863) - (168,965)
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Purchase of property, plant and equipment 18 (724) - - -
Purchase of investment in associate 20 (19,990) - (19,990) -
At F)ctober 2018 450,000 575,000 570 1,025,370 Purchase of investment in subsidiary 7 (93,409) - (121,264) -
Profit for the vear o i i 54,627 54,627 Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 30,896 - - -
Other comprehen'swel income for the year - - - - Cash on internal restructuring 7,30 14,321 - - -
Total comprehensive income ) ) 54,627 54,627 Net cash used in investing activities (348,368) (210,863) (98,164) (168,965)
Issue of shares (Note 26,30) 1,271,081 (575,000) - 696,081
Dividends (13,610) (13,610) Financing activities
At September 2019 1,721,081 - 41,387 1,762,468 Loan received 27 35,000 ) _ )
Share application monies received - 102,494 - 102,494
At 1 October 2017 519,466 - (2,815) 516,651 lssue of shares 203,451 . 203,451 .
Profit for the year o - - 3,185 3,185 Interest paid (2,873) (39) _ )
Other comprehen-swe. income for the year - - - - Dividends paid to shareholders of company (13,610) - (13,610) -
Total comprehensive income ) ) 3185 5185 Net cash generated from financing activities 221,968 102,455 189,841 102,494
Share application monies - 575,000 - 575,000
Reduction of capital (69,466) - - (69,466) Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (124,825) 74,977 (33,178) 47,559
At 30 September 2018 450,000 575,000 370 1,025,370 Cash and cash equivalents at 1 October 85,620 10,643 47,558 [©)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 September 25 (39,205) 85,620 14,380 47,558

The notes on pages 76 to 123 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Auditor’s report on pages 68 to 71.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 September 2019

2.2,

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Lavastone Ltd is a public company and listed on the Development & Enterprise Market (“DEM”) of the Stock Exchange of
Mauritius Ltd incorporated in Mauritius. The main activity is to hold investment properties and its registered office is at Cnr
Edith Cavell Street and Mere Barthelemy Street, Port Louis.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Lavastone Ltd and its subsidiaries as at
30 September 2019.

The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and complied
with the Companies Act 2001 and Financial Reporting Act 2004.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment property and consumable
biological assets that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Mauritian
Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (Rs’ 000), except where otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Lavastone Ltd and its subsidiaries as at
30 September 2019.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee
if and only if the Group has:

*  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

*  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

*  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

*  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
*  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCl) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the
Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

*  Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
¢ Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest

«  Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity

¢ Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

¢ Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

¢ Recognises any surplus or deficit in statement of profit or loss

¢ Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to statement
of profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property acquisitions and business combinations

Where property is acquired, via corporate acquisitions or otherwise, management considers the substance of the assets
and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business.
The basis of the judgement is set out in Note 5.

Where such acquisitions are not determined to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations.
Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity or assets and liabilities is allocated between the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the entity based on their relative values at the acquisition date.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS
9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in accordance with IFRS 9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at fair value
at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews
the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognised in profit
or loss. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 September 2019

(b)

©

C))

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the CGU.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is current when it is:

*  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
* Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
* ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
Or

*  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Mauritian rupees, which is also the parent company’s
functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss
are also recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, liability, expense or income (or part
of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date
of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an inventory property that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.
Capitalisation commences when: (1) the Group incurs expenditures for the asset; (2) the Group incurs borrowing costs;
and (3) the Group undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs should be capitalised for construction of any
qualifying assets.

The interest capitalised is calculated using the Group’s weighted average cost of borrowings after adjusting for borrowings
associated with specific developments. Where borrowings are associated with specific developments, the amount
capitalised is the gross interest incurred on those borrowings less any investment income arising on their temporary
investment. Interest is capitalised from the commencement of the development work until the date of practical completion,
i.e., when substantially all of the development work is completed. The capitalisation of finance costs is suspended if there
are prolonged periods when development activity is interrupted. Interest is also capitalised on the purchase cost of a
site of property acquired specifically for redevelopment, but only where activities necessary to prepare the asset for
redevelopment are in progress.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprises completed properties and properties under development or re-development that are
held, or to be held, to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Properties held under a lease is classified as
investment properties when they are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the
ordinary course of business or for use in production or administrative functions.

Investment properties comprises principally offices, commercial warehouse and retail properties that are not occupied
substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Group, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not
intended to be sold in the ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes,
professional fees for legal services and (only in case of investment properties held under a lease) initial leasing commissions
to bring the properties to the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair values, which reflect market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. For the purposes of these financial statements, in
order to avoid double counting, the fair values reported in the financial statements are:

. Reduced by the carrying amount of any accrued income resulting from the spreading of lease incentives and/or
minimum lease payments

¢ Inthe case of investment properties held under a lease, increased by the carrying amount of any liability to the head
lessor that has been recognised in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation

2019 Annual report | 79



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 September 2019

®

@

(h

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is evidence of a change in use (such as
commencement of development or inception of an operating lease to another party). For a transfer from investment
properties to inventories, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If an
inventory properties becomes an investment properties, the difference between the fair value of the properties at the
date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. The Group considers as evidence the
commencement of development with a view to sale (for a transfer from investment property to inventories) or inception
of an operating lease to another party (for a transfer from inventories to investment properties).

Investment properties is derecognised either when it has been disposed of (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control)
or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition. The amount of consideration to be included in the gain or loss arising from the derecognition of investment
property is determined in accordance with the requirements for determining the transaction price in IFRS 15.

Inventory properties

Inventory properties is principally made up of property previously held as investment property which has been transferred
on evidence of change in use, start of development in view of sale. Inventory property is measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (NRV).

Principally, this is residential property that the Group develops and intends to sell before, or on completion of, development.

Cost incurred in bringing each property to its present location and condition includes:
*  Freehold rights for land
*  Amounts paid to contractors for development

. Borrowing costs, planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal services, property
transfer taxes, development overheads and other related cost

NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, based on market prices at the reporting date, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When an inventory property is sold, the carrying amount of the property is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The carrying amount of inventory property recognised in profit or loss is determined
with reference to the directly attributable costs incurred on the property sold and an allocation of any other related costs
based on the relative size of the property sold.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or those
assets are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease. Leases of investment properties
are carried at fair value in line with the accounting policies of investment properties.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense
in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on an accruals basis over the lease term and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Rent receivables

Rent receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Revenue recognition

The Group’s key sources of income include: rental income, services to tenants and sale of completed property and inventory
property. The accounting for each of these elements is discussed below.

Rental income

The Group earns revenue from acting as a lessor in operating leases. Rental income arising from operating leases on
investment property is accounted for on an accrual basis, except for contingent rental income which is recognised when it
arises. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Revenue from services to tenants

For investment property held primarily to earn rental income, the Group enters as a lessor into lease agreements that fall
within the scope of IAS 17. These agreements include certain services offered to tenants (i.e., customers) including CAM
services (such as cleaning, security, landscaping. The consideration charged to tenants for these services includes fees
charged based on a percentage of the rental income and reimbursement of certain expenses incurred.

The Group has determined that these services constitute distinct non-lease components (transferred separately from the
right to use the underlying asset) and are within the scope of IFRS 15. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to the separate lease and revenue (non-lease) components on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from services to tenants (Continued)

In respect of the revenue component, these services represent a series of daily services that are individually satisfied over
time because the tenants simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group. The Group applies the
time elapsed method to measure progress.

The consideration charged to tenants for these services is based on a percentage of the rental income.

The Group arranges for third parties to provide certain of these services to its tenants. The Group concluded that it acts
as a principal in relation to these services as it controls the specified services before transferring them to the customer.
Therefore, the Group records revenue on a gross basis. For more information, please refer to note 5-significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions.

Revenues from the sale of inventory property
The Group enters into contracts with customers to sell properties.

Completed inventory properties

The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Group has determined that is satisfied
at the point in time when control transfers. For unconditional exchange of contracts, this generally occurs when legal title
transfers to the customer.

Payments are received when legal title transfers which is usually within two months from the date when contracts are
signed.

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether the carrying amount of inventory properties exceeds the remaining
amount of consideration that the entity expects to receive in exchange for the residential development less the costs that
relate directly to completing the development and that have not been recognised as expenses.

Trade receivables

A trade receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Revenue earned from property development activities,
but yet to be billed to customers, is initially recognised as contract assets and reclassified to trade receivables when the
right to consideration becomes unconditional. Refer to the accounting policies on financial assets in this note for more
information.

The trade receivables are presented in the statement of financial position under ‘Trade and other trade receivables’.
For more information, see Note 24.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity is recognised in OCl or
in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

«  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

¢ Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

«  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that
date, are recognised subsequently if there is new information about changes in facts and circumstances. The adjustment is
either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement
period or recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value measurements

The Group measures financial instruments such as investment properties and biological assets at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

2019 Annual report | 83



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 September 2019

n)

(0

M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability
Or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities, for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements, are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value or where
fair values are disclosed, are summarised in the following notes:

*  Accounting policy disclosures

*  Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
* Investment properties and biological assets

*  Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Accounting for financial assets before 1 October 2018 (under IAS 39)

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

84 | 2019 Annual report

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 September 2019

(0
®

(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Accounting for financial assets before 1 October 2018 (under IAS 39) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Group’s financial assets are classified as Loans and receivables (Trade and
other trade receivables and cash in hand and at bank).

Loans and receivables

This category is the most relevant to the Group. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other
operating expenses for receivables. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information
on receivables, refer to Note 24.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
Or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Accounting for financial assets after 1 October 2018 (under IFRS 9)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, or fair value through profit or loss.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets measured at
amortised cost (Trade and other receivables, and cash in hand and at bank).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Accounting for financial assets after 1 October 2018 (under IFRS 9) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

*  The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows
And

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Since the Group’s financial assets (Trade and other trade receivables, contract assets, cash in hand and at bank) meet
these conditions, they are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

*  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
Or

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Accounting for financial assets after 1 October 2018 (under IFRS 9) (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all financial assets not measured at fair valued
though profit or loss held by the Group in profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

For rent and other trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date (i.e., a loss allowance for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default). The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. At reporting date,
the ECL on financial assets was minimal.

Some other receivables are of the same nature as trade receivables but given that these are not the activities of the Group,
these are not classified as trade receivables. As those other receivables have a maturity of 1 year or less, the Group has
applied the practical expedient of IFRS 15. Where the balance due is repayable on demand and the borrower has enough
liquid assets to settle the balance due on demand, the probability of default is minimal. Where the Borrower does not have
enough liquid assets to settle the balance on demand but own other assets that can be sold to settle the balance due,
the loss given default is nil as the net realisable value of the assets cover the outstanding balance. In that case, the ECL is
limited to the effect of discounting the amount due of the loan over the period until the cash is realised and since those
companies can realise cash within a short period of time, the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The Group considers a financial asset to have a higher default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Accounting for financial liabilities before 1 October 2018 (under IAS 39)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of all financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, interest-bearing loans and borrowing and other liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Accounting for financial liabilities before 1 October 2018 (under IAS 39) (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category applies to all financial liabilities.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Accounting for financial liabilities after 1 October 2018 (under IFRS 9)

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. Financial
liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or at amortised cost.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, all financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised,
as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control over
subsidiaries.

The Group’s investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment in associates (Continued)

The profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in other comprehensive
income of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s in other comprehensive income. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent
of the interest in the associate. The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face
of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss
after tax.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on
its investment in its associates. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the associates is impaired.

If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as ‘impairment loss on associates’ in profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, an investment in an associate is stated at cost. The carrying amount is
reduced to recognise any impairment in the value of the investment. The adjustment is subsequently recorded in profit
or loss.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed to, or has
right to, variable returns from its investment with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company are carried at cost, net of any impairment.
Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is recognised in profit or loss. Upon disposal of the investment,
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Consumable Biological Asset

Consumable biological assets represent animals on hunting grounds and are stated at fair value less costs to sell. The fair
value is measured as the expected net cash flows from the sale of the deer less cost to sell. The changes in fair value less
cost to sell of the consumable biological assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Retirement benefit obligations

Severance allowance on retirement

For employees that are not covered under any pension plan, the net present value of severance allowances payable under
the Employee Rights Act 2008 is calculated independently by a qualified actuary, AON Hewitt Ltd. The expected cost
of these benefits is accrued over the service lives of employees on a similar basis to that for the defined benefit plan.
The present value of severance allowances has been disclosed as unfunded obligations under employee benefit liability.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Defined contribution plans

Employees in the Group are under a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held and administered by
an independent fund administrator. All new employees of the Group from that date become members of the defined
contribution plan. Payments by the Company to the defined contribution retirement plan are charged as an expense as
they fall due.

Segmental reporting
An operating segment is a component of an entity:

(a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity);

(b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and

(c) for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group’s business segments consist of core business (which is holding properties for capital appreciation) and
development of residential units for sale. Most of its activity is performed in Mauritius.

Other income

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
the Board of Directors of the investees declare the dividend.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of
these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in financial year 2019, but do not have an impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The amendments which were applicable on the financial statements of
the Group have been described below:

Effective for accounting

New or revised standards period beginning on or after

IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1January 2018
1January 2018

1January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts from customers
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting. The Group applied IFRS 9 for the first time 1 October
2018. The Group adopted a modified retrospective approach.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

Classification and measurement

Under IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost, or fair value
through OCI.

The classificationis based on two criteria: The Group’s business model for managing the assets; and whether the instruments’
contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding.

The assessment of the Group’s business model was made as of the date of initial application, 1 October 2018. The assessment
of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on
the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact on the Group. The following
are changes in the classification of Group’s financial assets.

¢ Trade receivables classified as trade and other receivables, are held to collect contractual cash flows and give rise
to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are classified and measured as debt
instruments at amortised cost beginning 1 October 2018.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at FVTPL. There are no changes in classification and measurement
for the Group’s financial liabilities.

In summary, upon as at 1 October 2018, the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group and the Company had the following required or
elected reclassifications:

Measurement under
IAS 39 and IFRS 9

Measurement Category Group Company
IAS 39 IFRS 9 Rs 000 Rs 000

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 21749 327,636
Cash in hand and at bank Loans and receivables Amortised cost 85,620 47,558

Impairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by
replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the
Group to recognize an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group and the Company assessed the impact of IFRS 9 to be immaterial and hence no
adjustments were made to the accounts.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted IFRS15 Revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended 30 September 2019.
The standard was applied using the modified retrospective approach.

IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard
requires extensive disclosures.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of
1 October 2018. Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application
or only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The Group elected to apply the standard to all contracts as at
1 January 2018.

The Group operates mainly as a lessor and receives rental income from its various properties. Rental income is outside
the scope of IFRS 15, however the Group also indulge in activities such as property management, sale of property and
rendering of service to its tenant for which it charges service charges. Below is an assessment of the various activities
undertaken by the Group.

Services to tenants

For investment property held primarily to earn rental income, the Group enters as a lessor into lease agreements that fall
within the scope of IAS 17 Leases. Such lease agreements include certain services offered to tenants including cleaning,
security, landscaping. These services are specified in the lease agreements and separately invoiced.

Consistent with previous accounting, the Group has determined that these services constitute distinct non-lease
components and are within the scope of IFRS 15. The Group continues to allocate the consideration in the contract to the
separate lease and service (non-lease) components based on the relative stand-alone selling prices.

The Group concluded applying IFRS 15 to its accounting for services to tenants did not have any impact.

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development
into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

Since Group’s previous practice is in line with the clarifications issued, these amendments do not have any effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial statements are listed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards and
interpretations when they become effective, if applicable

Effective for
accounting period
beginning on or after

New or revised standards

IFRS 16 Leases 1January 2019
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1January 2019
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation - Amendments to IFRS 9 1 January 2019
Long-term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments to IAS 28 1January 2019
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - Amendments to IAS 19 1January 2019
IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Previously held interests in a joint operation 1January 2019
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Previously held interests in a joint operation 1 January 2019
IAS 12 Income taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on Financial instruments classified as equity 1January 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing costs-Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization 1 January 2019
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Standards, Amendments to published Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Where the adoption of the standards or amendments or improvement is deemed to have an impact on the financial
statements or performance of the Group, their impact is described below:

IFRS16 - Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases
under IAS 17.

The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers)
and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in
the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating
and finance leases.

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not
before an entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

The Group operates as a lessor and also enter into operating lease contracts as a lessee. The property held under operating
lease are then subleased to various tenants. The Directors are still assessing the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 and
expects the impact to be minimal on the Group financial statements. The Group will adopt the accounting standard on
1 October 2019 and will apply a modified retrospective approach where the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16
will recognised as an adjustment to equity at the date of initial application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers:

*  Determination of performance obligations

In relation to the services provided to tenants of investment property (such as cleaning, security, landscaping,
reception services, catering) as part of the lease agreements into which the Group enters as a lessor, the Group has
determined that the promise is the overall property management service and that the service performed each day
is distinct and substantially the same. Although the individual activities that comprise the performance obligation
vary significantly throughout the day and from day to day, the nature of the overall promise to provide management
service is the same from day to day. Therefore, the Group has concluded that the services to tenants represent a
series of daily services that are individually satisfied over time, using a time-elapsed measure of progress, because
tenants simultaneously receive and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

The Group arranges for certain services provided to tenants of investment property included in the contract the
Group enters into as a lessor, to be provided by third parties. The Group has determined that it controls the services
before they are transferred to tenants, because it has the ability to direct the use of these services and obtain
the benefits from them. In making this determination, the Group has considered that it is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide these specified services because it directly deals with tenants’ complaints and it is
primarily responsible for the quality or suitability of the services. In addition, the Group has discretion in establishing
the price that it charges to the tenants for the specified services.

Therefore, the Group has concluded that it is the principal in these contracts. In addition, the Group has concluded
that it transfers control of these services over time, as services are rendered by the third-party service providers,
because this is when tenants receive and at the same time, consume the benefits from these services.

*  Determining the timing of revenue recognition on the sale of property

The Group has evaluated the timing of revenue recognition on the sale of property based on a careful analysis of the
rights and obligations under the terms of the contract and legal advice from the Group’s external counsel.

The Group has generally concluded that contracts relating to the sale of completed property are recognised at a point
in time when control transfers. For unconditional exchanges of contracts, control is generally expected to transfer
to the customer together with the legal title. For conditional exchanges, this is expected to take place when all the
significant conditions are satisfied.

For contracts relating to the sale of property under development, the Group has generally concluded that the over
time criteria are not met and, therefore, recognises revenue at a point in time. These consist mostly of parcels of land
being sold once relevant permits have been obtained.

Business combinations

The Group acquired a subsidiary which operates a hotel in Rodrigues during the reporting year as disclosed in note 7.
At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the
acquisition of an asset. The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of
activities and assets, including property, is acquired.

When the acquisition of subsidiaries does not represent a business combination, it is accounted for as an acquisition of a
group of assets and liabilities. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their
relative fair values, and no goodwill or deferred tax is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Judgements (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

As part of its assessment, the key factors considered by the Group to determine whether the transaction is a an acquisition
of a business or an asset were; components of the business (input, processes and output derived from the business),
and capacity to control the activities of the business. The Group concluded that the transaction is a business combination.

Common Control Transactions

The Group acquired subsidiaries in the real estate industry during the reporting year through an internal restructuring
carried out in the Cim Group, refer to note 30. The business acquisition has been determined by management as a business
combination under common control. The Group has accounted the transaction under the pooling of interest method.
In assessing whether the Group can account the transaction under the pooling of interest method, the Group considered
the substance of the transaction. Substance of the transaction has been determined on the following basis:

- the purpose of the transaction;
- the involvement of outside parties in the transaction, such as non-controlling interests or other third parties;
- the existing activities of the entities involved in the transaction.

Management assessed the transaction in line with the above and determined the transaction to lack commercial substance.
The transaction was accounted under the pooling of interest method.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment property is determined by independent real estate valuation experts using recognised
valuation techniques and the principles of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Investment properties are measured based on estimates prepared by independent real estate valuation experts.
The significant methods and assumptions used by valuers in estimating the fair value of investment properties are set out in
Note 16. Investment properties under development, Note 17.

Estimation of net realisable value for inventory properties

At year end, the Group holds inventory property with a carrying value of Rs 33,278,000 (2018: Rs nil). Inventory property
is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting
date and is determined by the Group, based on comparable transactions identified by the Group for property in the same
geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under development is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date
for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete the development and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale, taking into account the time value of money, if material.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Whilst risk is inherent in normal activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including
ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for
the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits
and control, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date administrative and
information systems.

The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging
best practice. The Board recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management policies
and systems in place. To this end, there is a clear organisational structure with delegated authorities and responsibilities
from the Board, executives and senior management. Individual responsibility and accountability are designed to deliver a
disciplined, conservative and constructive culture of risk management and control.

Financial risk factors
A description of the significant risk factors is given below together with the risk management policies applicable.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, which consist of market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. Written principles have been established
throughout the Group for overall risk management.

Market Risk

Market risk include foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. The Group is not exposed to significant
currency risk and equity price risk at the reporting date.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or fair value of
financial instruments. The Group did not have significant floating interest rate bearing financial assets and liabilities at the
reporting date.

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equity securities fluctuates as a result of the changes in the prices of those
securities. The Group is not exposed to significant equity price risks as it does not have any significant equity financial
assets.

Foreign Exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group is not exposed to foreign exchange risk as it does not have any significant financial
instrument in foreign currencies at the reporting date.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalent.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Trade and other receivables

The Group manages and control its credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit facilities are granted to customers with appropriate
credit history. Credit facilities to customers are monitored and the Group identifies defaults and recovers amounts due
according to its policies.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on internally defined criteria including the financial position of the
counterparties and the business sector they operate. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.
The Group’s receivables include amounts due from related entities which are disclosed in note 24. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date equals the carrying amount of the respective financial assets.

The Group adopted a simplified approach to assess the allowance for expected credit loss on its financial assets.
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e. Customer type). The provision
matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
(i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. At 30 September 2019,
the ECL on trade receivables was minimal. Accordingly, management did not adjust the accounts.

The aged analysis of trade receivables is disclosed in Note 24.

With respect to cash and cash equivalents, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the default of the counter
party with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying value of the instrument of Rs 37,885,000 (2018: Rs 85,620,000)
for the Group and Rs 14,380,000 (2018: Rs 47,558,000) for the Company. Cash at banks are held with reputable financial
institutions.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivery of cash or another financial asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an adequate
amount of credit facilities to settle amounts as they fall due. The Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available and monitors its cash flow through forecasting tools.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into relevant maturity based on the remaining year at the end of the reporting
year to the contractual maturity date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity of the Company’s financial liabilities is:

GROUP COMPANY
Sep-19 Sep-18 Sep-19 Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Trade and other payables*
On demand 85,484 17,848 389 3147
Within 3 months - - - -

Borrowings**

3 to 12 months 77,090 - = -
Between 1to 5 years 46,631 - - .
209,205 17,848 389 3,147

* Trade and other payables for the Group exclude value added tax payable at 30 September 2019 (2018: Nil)

** Borrowings have been adjusted for future interest costs.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholders’ value. The company aim at
distributing an adequate dividend whilst ensuring that sufficient resources are maintained to continue as a going concern
and for expansion.

The Group and the Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The ratio of net debt to equity is used to monitor capital and the ratio is kept at a reasonable level. For the purpose of
capital management, net debt consists of borrowings net of cash and cash equivalent. Equity consists of stated capital,
retained earnings and other reserves. There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during
the year.

GROUP COMPANY
Sep-19 Sep-18 Sep-19 Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Total borrowings 112,784 - - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) (37,885) (85,620) (14,380) 47,558
Borrowings Net of cash 74,899 (85,620) (14,380) 47,558
Total Equity 2,854,202 1,536,568 1,762,468 1,025,370
Debt to Equity ratio 2.62% 0.00% 0.00% 4.64%
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 1 February, the Group acquired 75% of Compagnie Valome Limited (CVL), a private company incorporated in Mauritius
for a consideration of Rs 83M. CVL holds property in the hotel industry, the acqusition was made as part of the Group’s
business strategy which gave the Group access to those assets held by CVL. The Directors considered this transaction as
an acquisition of a business, rather than an asset acquisition. The Group obtained control of CVL through its acquisition
of majority shareholding.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CVL as at the date of acquisition were:

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

Rs 000
Assets
Investment property 145,746
Trade and other receivables 10,321

156,067
Liabilities
Trade Payables 29,935
Deferred tax liabilities 4,042
Borrowings 10,141

44118

Total identifiable net assets at fair value m,949
Non controlling interest 27,987
Goodwill arising on acquisition -
Purchase consideration transferred 83,962
Net cash outflow from acquisition:

Rs 000
Consideration paid 83,962
Bank overdraft on acquisition of subsidiary 9,447

93,409

Included in borrowings is an amount of Rs 9.4M pertaining to bank overdraft.
The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest in CVL at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets.

From the date of acquisition, CVL has contributed Rs 2,887,328 to the profit after tax and Rs 5,032,993 to revenues.
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8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 9. DIRECT OPERATING EXPENSES
(@) Total revenue
GROUP COMPANY
GROUP 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Rs 000 Rs 000
Property and centre management fees 16,639 12,070 - -
Rental income and recoveries 155,328 135,351 Syndllc fees e 7,741 B )
Other operating income 7,121 4,934 Se‘c‘u‘rlty fees 601 6,150 B )
162,449 140,285 Utilities 3,176 1,740 - -
Repairs and maintenance 7,995 7,812 20 -
GROUP Deprec.iati.on - - 206 - - -
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 Amortisation of intangible assets 43 172 = -
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rent 3,449 642 - -
Rent, taxes and licences 914 3,275 - -
Rental income 133,534 115,173 Others 5,699 1,049 - -
Rental income 133,534 15,173 51,462 40,651 20 -
Other operating income 7,121 4,934 “Others” consist primarily of insurance and licence costs.
Services to tenants 21,794 20,178
Revenue from contracts with customers 28,915 25112 Direct operating expenses seggregated as:
Total rental income and revenue from contracts with customers 162,449 140,285 Direct expenses arrising from investment property that
generate rental income 46,798 40,651 - -
. . . . . Direct ising f i t t ty that
The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its properties under operating lease is more than 1 year. Refer to note 36 di'éerfofgz%fgtseagﬁtlgﬂnrc(;r:qlenves ment property tha 4,664 ; 20 B
for minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating lease. 51,462 40.651 20 B
Other operating income pertains to other services recharged to tenants. These services form part of the lease contract
With the tenants. 10. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
(b) Other Income
GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
GROUP COMPANY Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Legal and professional fees 5,627 3,942 1,674 321
Management fees 1,550 6,000 - 4
Dividend income - - 43,090 - Marketing fees 1.683 _ _ B
i)
- - 43,090 - Staff costs 22,132 15,726 1,518 -
IT expenses 2,183 394 23 -
Others 6,433 1,608 1,525 4
Write off of development costs 11,482 - - -
51,090 27,670 4,740 329

Included in staff costs is an amount of Rs 0.98M (2018: Rs 0.60M) pertaining to contribution towards a define contribution
plan managed by Rogers Pension Fund.

In the reporting year, management assessed the recoverability of the development costs for a project in one of the
subsidiary company and deemed the amount to be irrecoverable. The amount has been written off during the year.
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1. FINANCE COSTS

GROUP
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 2,873 -
Less: amounts capitalised (see note 17) (996) -
Total interest on bank loans and overdrafts 1,877 -
Interest expense on loan from holding company - 39
12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Increase/(Decrease) in fair value of investment properties 126,955 551 - (8,965)
Increase in fair value of biological assets 1,203 - - -
128,158 551 - (8,965)
13. INCOME TAX
GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
(a) Income tax expense
Income tax charge on the adjusted profit for the year at 15%
(2018: 15%) 10,065 9,414 962 2,186
Overprovision of income tax in previous years (163) (1,238) 4)
Deferred tax (d) 19,231 3,750 - -
(Over)/underprovision of deferred tax in previous years (378) 1,847 -
Corporate Social responsibility tax (2%) 1,342 1,394 128 291
Corporate Social responsibility tax over provided in previous year (225) - - -
29,872 15,167 1,086 2,477
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13.

(b)

©

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The tax on the Group and Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic

tax rate of the Group as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Profit before tax 186,248 81,427 55,713 5,662
Tax calculated at a rate of 15% (2018: 15%) 27,937 12,214 8,357 849
Corporate Social responsibility charge 3,725 1,629 1,14 13
Fair value gain on land (7,214) (247) - 1,524
Income not subject to tax* (646) - (9,098) -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes** 3,321 431 717 24
Overprovision in previous years (163) (1,238) 4) -
Corporate Social responsibility tax over provided in previous year (225) - - -
(Over)/underprovision of deferred tax in previous years (378) 1,847 -
Utilisation of tax losses (8,189) (24) -
Deferred tax not recognised 1,704 555 - (34)

29,872 15,167 1,086 2,477
* Income not subject to tax purpose comprise of dividend income from companies incorporated in mauritius and interest income.
** Expenses not deductible comprise of numerous expenses incurred by the Group which are not exempt under the tax act.
Current tax liabilities

GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
At 1 October 1,862 6,127 2,477 -
On internal restructuring 2 - - -
Charge during the year 10,065 9,415 962 2,186
Paid during the year (4,997) (3,259) (4,074) -
Over provision of Corporate social responsibility (225) - - -
Overprovision in previous year (163) (1,238) 4) -
Tax deducted at source (5,121) (10,577) - -
Refund during the year - - - -
Corporate social responsibility 1,342 1,394 128 291
At 30 September 2,765 1,862 (51) 2,477
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13. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 15. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(d) Deferred income tax
Residential
Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at 17% (2018: 17%) 50 September 19 Others development TOTAL
are caleula all temporary ! v At (LU 176, Rs'000 Rs’000 Rs'000
The movement in deferred tax liability during the period is as follows: Revenue 162,449 ; 162,449
Cost and others
Fair value Accelerated tax Property operating expenses (51,462) = (51,462)
gains depreciation Total .
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Other gains and losses 128,158 - 128,158
S S S
o Share of results in associates (34) - (34)
Deferred tax liability ) ) ) )
Profit on disposal of investment properties 104 - 104
Segment profit 239,215 - 239,215
At 1 October 2017 10,230 12,775 23,005 . -
ch dt fit of | 154 5752 5508 Administrative expenses (51,090)
argec 1o profit or '0ss (54) : ! Finance costs (1,877)
Profit before tax 186,248
At 1 October 2018 10,076 18,527 28,603 |
On business acqlwsmon (note 7) - 4,042 4,042 Assets
Charged to profit or loss 14,367 4,485 18,852 Non-current assets 2,910,999 . 2,910,999
At 30 September 2019 24,443 27,054 51,497 Inventory property . 33,278 33,278
. . Other assets 178,147 - 178,147
Unused tax losses of the Group that have not been recognised as deferred tax asset amounted to Rs 66.2M (2018: Rs Nil).
. . . . . Total assets 3,089,146 33,278 3,122,424
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of these losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
to utilise these losses. Deferrred tax liability arose on the investment properties. I
Segment liabilities
Loans and borrowings 112,784 - 112,784
Group R
Current liabilities 69,058 20,391 89,449
Rs 000 Contract liabilities 14,271 14,271
Other non-current liabilities 51,718 - 51,718
2020 8,621 Total liabilities 233,560 34,662 268,222
2021 7,898
2022 14,322 Residential
2023 17,328 30 September 18 Others development TOTAL
2024 18,014 Rs’000 Rs’000 Rs’000
66,183
Revenue 140,285 - 140,285
Cost and others
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE Property operating expenses (40,651 - (40,651)
Other gains and losses 551 - 551
. butabl ity sharehold Segment profit 100,185 - 100,185
Profit attributable to equity shareholder (Rs 000) 167,039 66,260 Administrative expenses (27.670)
ohted ber of ordi X 5 Interest income 8,951
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 479,522,496 485,399 Finance costs (39
Profit before tax 81,427
Basic/diluted earnings per share (Rs) 0.35 136.51 -
Assets
Non-current assets 1,282,333 - 1,282,333
15. SEGMENTAL REPORTING Other assets 302,769 . 302,769
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about Total assets 1,585,102 - 1,585,102
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss in
the consolidated financial statements. Segment liabilities
Current liabilities 19,710 19,710
Other non-current liabilities 28,824 28,824
Total liabilities 48,534 - 48,534
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16.

@

O
(i)
(i)

(b)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
At 1 October 1,237,029 1,025,615 160,000 -
Acquisitions arising from group restructuring 1,043,149 - - -
Acquisitions arising from business combination 145,747
Additions 24,336 210,863 - 151,035
Disposals (30,896) - - -
Reclassification to investment property under development (24,187) - - -
Transfer to PPE (115) - - -
Transfer from intangibles 45,145 -
Transfer to inventory property* (21,650) - - N
Increase/(Decrease) in fair value 126,955 551 - 8,965
At 30 September 2,545,512 1,237,029 160,000 160,000

Investment properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and not occupied by the Group are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value representing open-market value determined annually by the directors or independent external valuers with sufficient
regularity to ensure that investment property is always stated at its fair value. Changes in fair values are included in profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

* In the reporting year, management earmarked some plot of land on which it shall develop residential unit for sale. As at 30 September 2019, Rs 14M has been

received as deposit for these plot of land. The land was not ready for sale immediatley and has been classified as inventory properties.

Valuation method

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for at their fair value based on a valuation done during the year by JPW
International Property Consultants, an independent chartered valuer which has a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and numerous years of experience in locations and categories of the investment properties being valued.

Valuation techniques

The different methods used are:

Market comparison approach

Depreciated replacement cost approach and
Discount cash flow method (DCF method).

In the prior year, investment properties was principally valued using the market comparison approach for land and
depreciated replacement cost approach for building. The Group believes that the DCF method is most suitable for those
buildings to have their highest and best use, as such valuation technique has been changed for these properties.

For properties with development potential, the market comparison approach and depreciated cost approach for building
is used.
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16.

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Main inputs used in the valuation of the properties

Range Range

2019 2018

Rs Rs

Land (Price per square metre) 1,000 - 45,000 2,000 - 55,000
Buildings (Price per square metre) 12,000 - 57,500 8,000 - 85,000

Any increase/decrease in the price per square metre would result in a corresponding effect on the fair value of the
investment properties. The price per square metre referred to is the market price of similar properties where available.

For the market comparison approach, an insignificant discount rate has been used to value the properties.

For properties which are being rented out on full capacity, the DCF method has been used.

Under the DCF method, the fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a real
property interest. To this projected cash flow series, an appropriate, market-derived discount rate is applied to establish
the present value of the income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately determined and

differs from the discount rate.

All the investment properties are classified as level 3 on the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers made between
hierarchy levels.

Main assumptions used in the valuation of the properties under the DCF method are

Reversionary rate 7.0% - 8.5%
Discount rate 8% - 13%
Market rental growth 3% - 5%
Expense growth 3.50%
DCF period 5 years

Some of the investment properties are subject to fixed and floating charges in favour of lenders for borrowings taken by
the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

GROUP

30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18

Rs 000 Rs 000

At 1 October - -
Capital expenditure 255,126 -
Capitalised interest 996 -
Transfer from other receivables 63,811 -
Transfer from investment property 24,187 -
At 30 September 344,120 -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED) 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The investment property under development are stated at cost. The cost has been determined by external quantity Leasehold Computer
surveyor. At reporting date, management determined the cost to approximates fair value. The investment property under Rights software Total
development is classified as level 3 under the fair value hierachy. Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
GROUP
Transfer from other receivables pertains to an advance payment in respect of construction materials for which the risk Cost
and rewards were not transferred to the Group in prior year. The Group has recognised these payments in investment At 1 October 2017 45,800 1,375 47175
property under development following satisfaction of the legal title of the materials to the Group. These prepayments Additions - - -
were accounted under other receivables as part of the subsidiaries acquired in internal restructuring (note 30). At 30 September 2018 45,800 1.375 47175
Additions - -
Transfer to investment properties (45,800) - (45,800)
18. PLANT, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT At 30 September 2018 - 1375 1375
Amortisation
Equipment Motor vehicles Total At 1 October 2017 - 1,058 1,058
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Charge for the year 655 159 814
GROUP At 30 September 2018 655 1,217 1,872
Cost Transfer to investment properties (655) - (655)
At 1 October 2018 - - - Charge for the year - 43 43
Transfer to Property, plant and equipment 15 - 15 At 30 September 2018 _ 1260 1260
Transfer from related party - 663 663
Additions 304 420 724 Net Book Value as at 30 September 2019 - 15 115
At 30 September 2019 418 1,083 1,502 Net Book Value as at 30 September 2018 45,145 158 45,304
Depreciation During the year under review, Rs 45.1M was transferred to investment property following a change in use. This amount
At1October 2018 - - - pertained to acquisition cost of a leasehold right in the prior year.
Transfer - - -
Charge for the year 206 - 206 Amortisation charge has been included in operating expenses.
At 30 September 2019 206 - 206
Net Book Value as at 30 September 2019 213 1,083 1,296 20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Net Book Value as at 30 September 2019 - - -
GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
At 1 October - - - -
Additions 19,990 - 19,990 -
Share of results in associates (34) - - -
At 30 September 19,956 - 19,990 -
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20.

21.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 21.

During the year under review, the Company acquired 40.64% interest in Victoria Station Ltd, a newly incorporated company.

30-Sep-19
Proportion of
ownership interest

Details of investment in associate

Investment Country of incorporation Activity Class of shares held

Victoria Station Ltd Mauritius Property Ordinary Shares 40.64%

The directors believe that investments in Victoria Station Limited is fairly stated.
The above associated company is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.
Victoria Station Ltd was incorporated on 31 January 2019.

The table below presents a summary of financial information in respect of Victoria Station Ltd.

30-Sep-19

Current assets 13,098

Non current assets 47,608

Current liabilities (11,602)

Proportion of Group’s ownership 19,956

Equity attributable to other shareholders 29,148

Loss for the period (84)

Group’s share of loss for the period of the associated company (34)
Revenue of the associates for the period is Nil. Dividend income from the associates for the reporting period is Nil. (a)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY

30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18

Rs 000 Rs 000

At 1 October 495,800 495,800
Transfer(a) 492,630 - (b)

Additions(b) 121,264 -

At 30 September 1,109,694 495,800
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Details of investment in subsidiaries

30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Class of Stated Proportion of

Investment Activity shares held Capital ownership interest
Lavastone Properties Ltd Property Ordinary 450,000 100% 100%
Belle Mare SPV Ltd Property Ordinary 36,000 100% 100%
B59 Ltd Property Ordinary 1 100% 100%
Plato Holdings Ltd Property Ordinary 10 100% 100%
Edith Cavell Properties Ltd Property Ordinary 176,231 100% -
San Paolo Ltd Property Ordinary 5,022 59.18% -
Le Morne Development Corporation Ltd Property Ordinary 25 60.01% -
SWTD Bis Ltd Property Ordinary 163,350 100.00% -
South West Safari Group Ltd Property Ordinary 321,354 54.81% -
Pier9 Ltd Property Ordinary 1 54.81% -
La Jetee Ltd Property Ordinary 1 54.81% -
Compagnie Valome Ltee Property Ordinary 13,000 75% N

All the subsidiaries listed above are incorporated in Mauritius.

In May 2018, the board of directors of Cim Financial Services Limited (CFSL) resolved the spinning off of the property
segment of the CFSL group with the eventual listing of Lavastone Ltd on the Development and Enterprise Market (DEM)
of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius subject to the approval from the relevant authority.

On 15 October 2018, after having received the relevant approval, CFSL proceeded with the restructuring of the property
segment in view of the eventual distribution and listing of the shares of Lavastone Ltd. All entities under the property
segment have been regrouped under Lavastone Ltd in exchange of additional shares issued by Lavastone Ltd for Rs 492M
(Notes 26 and 30). In addition, further investments of Rs 203,450,000 were made by CFSL in the Company. The main active
entities which were previously held by CFSL and have been restructured under Lavastone Ltd are Edith Cavell Properties Ltd,
Le Morne Development Corporation Ltd and South West Safari Group Limited. The remaining entities are dormant.

The Company acquired a 75% stake in Compagnie Valome Ltee in December 2018, which holds the Mourouk Ebony Hotel.
The acquisition was made at a transaction price of Rs 84M. The remaining addition amounting to Rs 37.3M pertain to

additional investment made in Edith Cavell Properties Ltd.

Post transaction as described in (a), the Company contributed an amount of Rs 37.3M in Edith Cavell Properties Ltd.
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21. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21.
MATERIAL PARTLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
Financial information of subsidiaries that have material interests is provdided below:
Proportion of equity interest held by non-controling interests:
Name Country of incorporation and operation 30-Sep-19
Le Morne Development Corporation Ltd ("LMDC”) Mauritius 40%
South West Safari Group Ltd ("SWSG”) Mauritius 45%
30-Sep-19
Rs ‘000
Accumulated balances of material non-controling interest
Le Morne Development Corporation Ltd ("LMDC”) 115,101
South West Safari Group Ltd ("SWSG”) 202,333
Loss allocated to material non-controlling interest
Le Morne Development Corporation Ltd ("LMDC”) (1,614)
South West Safari Group Ltd ("SWSG”) (9,336)
The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is provided below. This information is based on amounts before 22

inter-company eliminations.

Summarised statement of profit or loss for 2019:

SWSG LMDC

Rs ‘000 Rs ‘000
Revenue 363 1141
Cost of sales (1,946) ms)
Administrative (5,492) (12,906)
Other gains and losses (6,043) 10,071
Finance cost (7,542) (2,225)
Loss before tax (20,660) (4,034)
Income tax - -
Loss for the year from continuing operations (20,660) (4,034)
Total comprehensive loss (20,660) (4,034)
Attributable to non-controlling interests (9,336) (1,613)
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Summarised statement of financial position as at 30 September 2019:

SWSG LMDC

Rs ‘000 Rs ‘000
Total assets 548,937 326,699
Total liabilities (129,743) (42,983)
Total equity 419,194 283,716
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent 189,434 113,464
Non-controlling interest 229,760 170,252
Summarised cashflow information for the year ended 30 September 2019

SWSG LMDC

Rs ‘000 Rs ‘000
Operating (46,241) 473
Financing 4,328 -
Investing 35,000 -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash (6,913) 473
CONSUMABLE BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

GROUP
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18

Rs 000 Rs 000
At 1 October - -
Movement in biological assets 3,233 -
Transfer to cost of sales (1,203) -
Profit arising from changes in fair value 1,082 -
At 30 September 3,112 -

The Group is engaged in the rearing of livestocks. The livestocks have been classified as consumable biological assets.
As at 30 September 2019, the Group held an estimated number of 786 deers. During the year under review, 8,660kg of
meat were produced and sold. The consumable biological assets pertain to livestock and are measured in accordance with
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Livestock are measured at their fair value less costs to sell. The fair value of livestock is
based on local prices of livestock of similar age, breed, and genetic merit in the principal (or most advantageous) market

for the livestock.

Description of significant inputs to valuation:

Valuation technique

Significant input

Livestock Income approach

Price of deer (Rs 153/kg)

Average weight (33kgs)

5% increase in the price of deer would lead
to an increase in fair value of Rs 135,000

5% increase in weight would increase the fair
value by Rs 135,000
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23. INVENTORY PROPERTY

GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
At 1 October - - - -
Development costs 11,628 - - -
Transfer of land cost from investment property 21,650 - - -
At 30 September 33,278 - = -

The Group is involved in the development of residential property (land parcelling), which it plans to sell in the ordinary
course of business. During the year, it entered into contracts to sell these properties at completion and obtention of the

relevant permits from the authorities.

Deposits received from customers in respect of the land parcelling projects amount to Rs 14.3M (2018 - nil).

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

GROUP COMPANY

30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Trade receivables 4,787 685 - -
Amount owed by related parties 57,659 206,100 455,377 325,707
Prepayments 2,949 8,141 - 1,667
Income tax deducted at source receivable 3,338 1,933 - -
Other receivables 68,416 290 2,904 262
137,150 217,149 458,281 327,636

The amount receivable from group companies are unsecured, bearing interest rate 6% per annum and receivable on
demand. The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all related

parties who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.

Other receivables consist of Rs 20.5M of VAT claimed on capital goods, which is yet to be refunded by the Mauritius

Revenue Authority.

(a) The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Current - Neither past due nor impaired 1,941 282 - -
1to 3 months - Past due but not impaired 406 158 - -
Over 3 months - Past due but not impaired 2,440 245 - -
4,787 685 - -

(b) The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.
Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise of the following:

GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Cash in hand and at bank 37,885 85,620 14,380 47,558
Bank overdraft (note 27) (77,090) - - -
(39,205) 85,620 14,380 47,558
Undrawn bank overdraft facilities amounted to Rs 192.9m (2018 - nil)
(b) Non-cash transactions
The following non-cash transactions occurred during the year:
GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Transfer of companies in return for shares (i) 492,630 - 492,630
Share application monies (iii) - 472,506 - 472,506
Reduction of share capital against (ii) receivables - 69,466 - 69,466

O] This pertain to issue of shares in exchange of investments in subsidiaries across the Group. Please refer to note 30.

(i) The Group made a capital reduction of 69,466 shares equivalent to Rs 69,466,000 through the cancellation of the shares

against the amount receivable from the shareholder.

(i) Refer to note 26(b).

26. (a) SHARE CAPITAL

30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Number Number

of shares Rs 000 of shares Rs 000
GROUP AND COMPANY
Authorised and issued share capital
At 1 October 450,000 450,000 519,466 519,466
Reduction in capital - - (69,466) (69,466)
Issue of shares 680,073,310 1,271,081 - -
At 30 September 680,523,310 1,721,081 450,000 450,000
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26. (b) SHARE APPLICATION MONIES
GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
At 1 October 575,000 - 575,000 -
Movement during the year (575,000) 575,000 (575,000) 575,000
At 30 September - 575,000 - 575,000
The share application monies can be analysed as follows:
Rs 000
Cash contribution 102,494
Distribution of assets from CFSL 472,506
575,000
The share application monies relate to contribution towards equity shares in Lavastone Ltd from Cim Financial Services
Ltd ("CFSL”) which were not yet issued at the prior year’s reporting date. As at 30 September 2019, these shares have
been issued. The assets which were distributed were loan receivables which CFSL had with various subsidiaries across
the Group.
CAPITAL RESERVES
During the year under review, the Group carried out an internal restructuring and all entities pertaining to the property
cluster in the Cim Financial Services Ltd group were transferred to Lavastone Ltd. The transfer of these subsidiaries have
been treated as a business combination under common control. The Group accounted for the restructuring on a book value
accounting. Refer to note 30.
27. BORROWINGS
GROUP COMPANY
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
Current
Bank overdraft 77,090 - - -
77,090 - - -
Non-current
Bank loan 35,000 - - -
Finance lease 694 - - -
35,694 - - -
Total borrowings 112,784 - - -
(a) The carrying amount of the long term loans approximates their fair values and the rates of interest vary between 5.6% and
6.5% (2018 - nil).
(b) Bank loan and finance lease is payable after two years and before five years; Bank overdraft is payable within 1 year.
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28.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

GROUP
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs 000 Rs 000

Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability
At 1 October 221 -
Amount recognised in the profit & loss - 24
Amount recognised in OCI - 197
Less employer contributions - -
At 30 September 221 221
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
At 1 October 221 -
Current service cost - 24
Liability experience (gain)/loss - 191
Liability (gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions - 6
At 30 September 221 221
Components of amount recognised in P&L
Current past service cost - 24
Components of amount recognised in OCI
Liability experience loss - 191
Liability loss due to change in financial assumptions - 6
Total - 197
Principal Assumptions used at End of Period
Discount rate 5.6% 6.2%
Rate of salary increases 3.8% 4.7%
Rate of pension increases 0.8% 0.5%
Average retirement age (ARA) 65 60
Average life expectancy for:
Male at ARA 15.9 years 19.5 years
Female at ARA 20.0 years 24.2 years
Sensitivity analysis on Defined Benefit Obligation at End of Period
Increase due to 1% decrease in discount rate 172 88
Decrease due to 1% increase in discount rate 108 70

The above sensitivity analysis has been carried out by recalculating the present value of obligation at end of period after
increasing or decreasing the discount rate while leaving all other assumptions unchanged. The results are particularly
sensitive to a change in discount rate due to the nature of the liabilities being the difference between the pure retirement
gratuities under the Employment Rights Act 2008 and the deductions allowable, being five times the annual pension
provided and half the lump sum received by the member at retirement from the pension fund with reference to the
Group’s share of contributions. The latter amounts to Rs 1,880,000 as at 30 September 2019. Any similar variation in the
other assumptions would have shown smaller variations in the defined benefit obligation. There has been no change in the
Group’s pension liability compared to previous reporting period.

Future cash flows

The funding policy is to pay benefits out of the entity’s cash flow as and when due.
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 22 years
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29.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30.

GROUP COMPANY

30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18

Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

Trade payables 2,225 4,612 19 1
Deposits 6,120 - - -
Accruals 63,104 - 369 -
Amount owed to related parties - 176 - 2,886
Other payables 15,235 13,060 - 260
86,684 17,848 388 3147

Trade payables are non interest bearing and are generally settled on an average term of 30 to 90 days.

Deposits pertain to a deposit from the tenant which will be repaid to the tenant at the end of the lease term. The Deposit
is initially recognised and measured at fair value, and then subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. On initial recognition there was no difference between the carrying amount (present value) of the financial
liability and the actual consideration received.

Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, repayable on demand and bear interest at the rate of 6.00% per annum.

The carrying amounts of payables approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.

Oher payables consist of accrual for management fees and VAT payable.

GROUP
30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Contract liabilities-customer deposits 14,271 -

Contract liabilities include non-refundable deposits received from customers on conditional exchange of contracts relating
to sale of completed unit of property as part payment towards the purchase at completion date. This gives the Group
protection if the customer withdraws from the conveyancing transaction. If this were to happen, the customers would
forfeit their deposits. The standard conditions of sale provide for a 10% to 20% deposit to be paid on exchange of contracts,
based on the purchase price and the value of the property and other items that have been agreed to be sold under the
contract.

INTERNAL RESTRUCTURING

Following the approval of Prime Minister’s Office (“PMO”) on 15 October 2018, there was an internal restructuring of
the property cluster within the CIM Holding Ltd Group (the holding company of Cim Financial services ("CFSL”) at
that date. CFSL was the holding company of Lavastone Ltd) whereby entities engaged in real estate industry and held
by CFSL were transferred to Lavastone Ltd in exchange of shares in the Company. Through the internal restructuring,
Lavastone Ltd acquired the following companies: San Paolo Ltd, Edith Cavell Properties Ltd, Le Morne Development
Corporation Ltd, SWTD Bis Ltd and South West Safari Group Ltd.
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30.

@

INTERNAL RESTRUCTURING (CONTINUED)
As part of the internal restructuring of the property cluster of the Group, the following assets and liabilities were acquired

at carrying value:

Book Value
recognised on
Notes acquisition
Rs 000
Non Current Assets
Investment Properties 16 1,043,149
1,043,149
Book Value
recognised on
Notes acquisition
Rs 000
Current Assets
Consumable Biological Assets 22 3,233
Trade and other receivables 94,631
Cash and cash equivalent 14,321
112,186
Total assets 1,155,335
Non Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 140,990
Deferred Tax liability -
140,990
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20,912
Short term borrowings 50,000
Current Tax payable 2
70,915
Total Liabilities 211,905
Net assets 943,430
Consideration (i) 20 (492,630)
Carrying value of assets over consideration 450,800
Analysed as:
Non controlling interest 319,747
Capital reserves arising on acquisition 131,053
450,800
Consideration Number of shares Value
Rs 000
Shares 492,630 492,630
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30.

31.

INTERNAL RESTRUCTURING (CONTINUED)

In determining the accounting treatment of the transaction, the Group determined whether the acquisition meets the
definition of a business in line with IFRS 3-Business combinations. The acquisition meets the definition of a business
combination as the entities being transferred have an integrated set of activities and assets that are managed to provide
return to the Group.

The pooling of interest method was used to account for the transaction in the Group’s financial statements as the
transaction was determined to have lack commercial substance. Refer to judgement section for details of management’s
assessment on the substance of the transaction.

The carrying amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed has been based on the carrying amounts recognised
in the separate accounts of the companies being transferred. The difference between the consideration transferred and
the carrying amounts of the companies being transferred have been adjusted as part of equity in “capital reserve’ in the
statement of changes in equity.

The financial information in the consolidated financial statements has not restated for periods prior to the business
combination under common control and has accounted for the combination from beginning of the period.

The acquisition was made in exchange of shares of the Company to CFSL. In the Company’s separate financial statements
the cost of acquisition was accounted as part of investment in subsidiaries and have been measured at the carrying value
in the previous holder’s financial statements. Refer to note 21.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The following table provides the details of transactions that have been entered in/or with related parties for the relevant
financial year:

THE GROUP
Amount Amount
Management owed by owedto  Loan from
Rental Other & Secretarial Other related related related
income income fees payable services parties parties party
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
30-Sep-19
Associate - - - - 1,137 - -
Companies with common shareholders 52,258 14,081 (2,678) 23,847 56,522 - -
Amount Amount
Management owed by owed to  Loan from
Rental Other & Secretarial Finance related related related
income income fees payable cost parties parties party
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000
30-Sep-18
Holding company - - - 39 - 176 -
Fellow subsidiaries 23,742 8,699 (6,051) - 77118 - 128,982

Companies with common shareholders 30,553 - - - - - -
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31.

32,

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
THE GROUP

Key management personnel remuneration

30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs000 Rs000
Short-term employee benefit 20,822 14,759
Post-employment benefit 1,309 967
22,131 15,726
THE COMPANY

Investment & Interest Amount owed by Amount owed to Loan to related
Other income income related parties related parties party
Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000 Rs 000

30-Sep-19
Subsidiaries 43,090 17,383 332,039 - 122,074

30-Sep-18
Fellow Subsidiaries - - 81,769 2,886 243,938

(a) The terms and conditions in respect of receivables and payables have been disclosed under respective notes.

All sales and purchases made within the Group are made at commercial rates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 30 September 2019, no provision has been recognised in
relation to impairment of related party. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of each related party and the market in which the related party operates.

CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

THE GROUP
1 October Other At 30
2019 Cash inflows Cash outflows movement  September 2019
Borrowings (excluding bank overdraft) - 35,000 - 694 35,694
Interest payable - - (2,873) 2,873 -
- 35,000 (2,873) 3,567 35,694
1 October Other At 30 September
2018 Cash inflows Cash outflows movement 2018
Interest payable - 39 - (39) -
- 39 - (39) -

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financiang activities for the Company (2018: Nil)

Other movement pertain to non-cash transactions such as interest accrued and not yet paid at year end accounted in
borrowings.
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33. HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 37. FINANCIAL REVIEW
Following the restructuring of the property cluster, the holding company of Lavastone Ltd changed from Cim Financial
Services Ltd to Cim Holdings Ltd. The ultimate holding company is Elgin Ltd. Both companies being incorporated in 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Mauritius. Rs’m Rs’m
THE GROUP
34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE Share capital 1,721.08 450.00
On 5 December 2019, the Board of Directors approved the implementation of a Bond Programme as part of the Company’s Reserves 796.05 a11.57
funding strategy. Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 2,517.13 1,536.57
Assets 3,122.42 1,585.10
The Company has proposed to issue up to a maximum of Rs 1.5Bn through this Bond Programme. Liabilities  — 48.53
Revenue 162.45 140.29
35. COMMITMENTS Profit before taxation 186.25 81.43
Income tax expense (29.87) (1517)
Operating lease commitments - Group as a lessor Profit for the year 156.38 66.26
The Group has entered into operating lease for investment properties consisting of buildings for business rental. Dividend (13.61) -
These leases have terms ranging from one to 10 years. The leases include escalation clause to enable upward revision of
the rental charge. The escalation relates to Consumer Price Index (CPI) only. Future minimum rental receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases as at the reporting date are as follows: 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs Rs
THE GROUP
EoY 20-Sen-18 Basic net assets value per share 3.70 3,165.58
-Re:;)o R eg&) Basic earnings per share 0.35 136.51
s s 000 Dividend per share 0.02 -
Within one year 160,391 95,594
After one ygar but not more than five years 820,358 231,279 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
More than five years 512,528 103,436 ;
Rs’m Rs'm
1,493,277 430,309
. . THE COMPANY
Operating lease commitments - Group as a lessee
30-Sep-19 30-Sen-18 Share capital 1,721.1 450.0
R :00 Regoo Reserves 414 0.4
S S
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 1,762.5 1,025.4
Withi 3.506 2569 Assets 1,762.9 1,031.0
Hhinone year _ ’ : Liabilities 0.4 56
After one year but not more than five years 14,026 10,276
More than five years 121,229 118,173 ) .
138,761 131018 Profit before taxation 55.7 5.7
2 - Income tax expense 0 (2.5)
Profit for the year 54.6 3.2
Dividend (13.6) -
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group entered into contractual commitments amounting to Rs 433M for ongoing developments projects at 246 Edith
Cavell Court and the hotel project at Belle Mare. 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-18
Rs Rs
246 Edith Cavell Court, a mixed office and retail development opened its door to the public at the end of November 2019.
Basic net assets value per share 2.59 2,279
Basic earnings per share 0.08 7.08
Dividend per share 0.02 -
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Lavastone Ltd X X X X C X X X
Lavastone Properties Ltd C X X
B59 Ltd X X
Edith Cavell Properties Ltd X X X
La Jetee Ltd X X
Le Morne Development Corporation Ltd X X C X X
The Belle Mare SPV Ltd X
Pier9 Ltd X X
Plato Holdings Ltd X
San Paolo Ltd C X X
South West Safari Group Limited X X X (4 X X
SWTD Bis Ltd X X X
Compagnie Valome Ltee A X

C-Chairman  X-In office as director ~ A-Appointed as director = R-Resigned as director D-Deceased
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